
FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 1 of 8 
 

FREDERICK COUNTY AFFORDABLE HOUSING COUNCIL  

401 Sagner Avenue ● Frederick, Maryland 21701  
301-300-3530 

https://frederickcountymd.gov/6371/Affordable-Housing-Council 

Hybrid 

Tuesday, October 11, 2022  

Minutes of Meeting 

 

Minutes of Meeting: 

Welcome and Call to Order 

Chair Hugh Gordon called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. and reviewed the protocol for the 

meeting. 

Attendance:   
Members 
X Hugh Gordon, Chair  Patricia Galloway X Assan Sosseh 

X Malcolm Furgol, Vice Chair X Bruce Gourley   Jason Wiley 

 Tiffany Fossett, Secretary  Veronica Henry  Bruce Zavos 

X Gary Bennet  X Angie Lollar   

  
Public Officials/Staff Liaisons:  
X Susan Brown, Director  Derek Shackleford, Alderman,  

 Department of Housing and Community 
Development, Frederick County 

 City of Frederick Liaison 

 Christine Cambareri Kay, Director, X Lauren Metz, Community Program 

 Citizen’s Services  Manager/Community Development 
 Jessica Fitzwater,   Ruth Waxter, Assistant Director of Housing 

 Frederick County Council Liaison  City of Frederick Health & Human Services 
X Ericka Rohrbaugh, Assistant Director  Conor Glynn, Manager of Weatherization,  

 Human Services, City of Frederick  City of Frederick 
 

Guests / Visitors: 

Desiree Gueye, Habitat for Humanity Frederick County; CoraLynn Wells, Habitat for Humanity 

Frederick County; Derby Swanson, Habitat for Humanity Frederick County; Ryan Trout, citizen; 

Eric Anderson, Habitat for Humanity; Brandon Marks, Division Manager, Community Planning 

and Urban Design 

https://frederickcountymd.gov/6371/Affordable-Housing-Council


FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 2 of 8 
 

Hugh determined a quorum was not present, so he announced business items, approval of the 

agenda, and approval of the September meeting minutes would be postponed, and he opened 

PUBLIC COMMENT.   

Public Comment (No quorum present):  

¶ Ryan Trout asked when the Council would next meet about the proposed MPDU 

legislation. Susan replied it would be on the 18th. Ryan suggested the AHC be 

prepared for future comment on the legislation. Gary asked Ryan to explain the 

proposed bills. Ryan explained the proposed MPDU legislation.  

Business:  

1. Updates from Staff, Elected Officials, and other Liaisons: 

¶ Jessica Fitzwater, County Councilwoman – Not present 

¶ Shackleford, Alderman, City of Frederick– attending from MML Conference  
o Looking into housing trust funds for the City 
o Ryan asked if Derek has received copies of the County’s proposed MDPU bills. 

Derek replied with a request for Ryan to send them to him.  

¶ Susan Brown, Manager, Director, Department Housing and Community Development –  
o No comments 

¶ Ruth Waxter, Assistant Director of Housing, City of Frederick Housing and Human 
Services – Not present 

2. Hugh said Susan wanted the AHC to discuss the November AHC meeting, because it is scheduled 
for election day. There was not objection to cancelling the November AHC meeting.  

3. Hugh asked Alderman Shackleford to discuss form-based code. Alderman Shackleford said the 
City is moving to include form-based code in their Comprehensive Plan and explained form-
based code requires certain building construction restrictions while allowing for flexibility of 
uses.  
(Malcolm joined. A quorum was present.) 
Angie added that the Housing Authority was looking at a possible LIHTC deal right outside the 
proposed form-based code boundary and thinks it would be good to for the AHC to understand 
and comment, if found necessary, on the possible impacts the form-based code area could have 
on affordable housing. Hugh asked if traffic studies are part of the plan. Alderman Shackleford 
said it is part of the APFO. Angie added comments on parking requirement concerns and asked 
about inviting the consultants to the AHC. Derek offered to reach out to the consultants to see if 
they could present to the AHC. Hugh asked Derek about identifying areas for affordable housing 
in Frederick City. Derek replied that is why the Housing Department was created for the City to 
focus on these topics and policy. Angie reiterated she thinks the AHC should just be informed 
about how form-based code could impact affordable housing in the area in general. 

¶ Brandon Marks distributed handouts (attached) and gave history on zoning, form-based 
code, and form-based code in the City of Frederick. He said there was a charette in 
August 2022, development is incentivized by a shorter approval process, there would be 
a presentation to the Planning Commission the upcoming Monday and to the Aldermen 
the upcoming Wednesday and should have many public meetings in the future. Ryan 



FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 3 of 8 
 

asked if the vision would open more opportunities for housing. Brandon replied it 
should be mixed-use and encourage reinvestment on underutilized properties. Hugh 
asked about other places as examples of this working in other places. Brandon said it 
has been used successfully in other places around the country. Ryan asked if the 
proposed area is a “test”. Brandon said it is not a test, but the strategic plan designates 
this as tool in the future. Malcom asked what the best way is the AHC can provide input. 
Brandon replied that public meetings and charettes are good ways. Brandon said form-
based code will allow for flexibility. Angie asked if there has been discussion about 
helping with the costs of working around infrastructure to build affordable housing. 
Brandon form-based code can be expensive. Hugh asked about historic preservation. 
Brandon replied that the form-based code boundary does not include historic 
preservation overlays, because the overlays already have their own building 
requirements. Angie asked if there is any way to request modifications to the form-
based code requirements. Brandon said it is undetermined yet, but typically if the 
development meets the requirements, it would be approved, and if it does not, it would 
need to be shown/proven why it should still be approved, which is typically not based 
on use or density. Angie said she has concerns a rigid code requiring grid development 
could “grid out” affordable housing when a grid form would add to the cost of 
development that would otherwise be avoidable if not required to conform to grid form.  

(Assan left. No quorum present.) 
4. Hugh announced, since there was not a quorum, the minutes would not be approved.  
5. Advertisement for Council openings – Hugh said it has closed and thinks we received one 

application and still have more positions to fill.  
6. Hugh asked if there were any other comments or sharing. 

¶ Ryan said rental licensing past the city council and there is workgroup of implantation; 
there is an organization called The Redress movement having webinars and is led by the 
author of The Color of Law; NIMBY Maryland pulling together proposed legislation for 
support; suggests planning staff attend AHC meetings regularly 

¶ Malcolm shared on Councilwoman Fitzwater’s behalf 
o The third reading for all three MPDU bills is scheduled for the following Tuesday, 

October 18. 

¶ Malcolm asked if anyone wanted to be added to the Policy Committee invite for 
November 1. Hugh and Alderman Shackleford said they would like to be included in the 
invite.  

¶  
7. Updates from Standing Committees 

¶ Messaging/Education – Hugh 

¶ Policy – Malcolm 

¶ Development Tracking Committee -  
8. Reminder to review Bylaws – participate on a committee 
9. Public Comment:  
      There was no public comment. 

10. Comments and sharing by Council Members 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:01 pm. 



FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 4 of 8 
 

The Frederick County Affordable Housing Council meets the second Tuesday of each month at 
2:30pm. 

The next meeting will be Tuesday, December 13, 2022.           

           

  



FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 5 of 8 
 

 

  



FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 6 of 8 
 



FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 7 of 8 
 



FC AHC Minutes of Meeting  
October 11, 2022   Page 8 of 8 
 

 


